
Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

Mary Bravo 
Councilmember 

Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

Gloria Cota 
Councilmember 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

Agendas/Minutes:  
www.guadalupeaz.org 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 

***DUE TO COVID-19, SEATING CAPACITY IS  
LIMITED TO NO MORE THAN 10 ATTENDEES*** 

***MEETING BROADCAST LIVE ON TOWN OF GUADALUPE FACEBOOK PAGE*** 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE GUADALUPE TOWN COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 24, 2020 
6:00 P.M. 

GUADALUPE TOWN HALL 
9241 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI, TOWN HALL LOBBY 

GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Town of Guadalupe Council 
and to the general public that the Guadalupe Town Council will hold a meeting, open to the public, on 
Tuesday, November 24, 2020, at 6:00 P.M., at Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, 
Town Hall Lobby, Guadalupe, Arizona.  

AGENDA 
A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None.

E. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  An opportunity is provided to the public to address the Council on items
that are not on the agenda or included on the consent agenda. A total of 3 minutes will be provided for
the Call to the Audience agenda item, unless the Council requests an exception to this limit. Please
note that those wishing to comment on agenda items posted for action will be provided the opportunity
at the time the item is heard.

F. MAYOR and COUNCIL PRESENTATIONS:  None.

G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS:

1. PUBLIC HEARING COMMUNITY BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (RESOLUTION NO. R2020.34):
Hold a public hearing to obtain maximum feasible citizen involvement in the planning of specific Housing
and Urban Development Community Block Grant projects for fiscal year 2021-2022.   Council may
provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.  (related to G2)

2. COMMUNITY BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (RESOLUTION NO. R2020.34):  Council will consider
and may take action to approve Resolution No. 2020.34 authorizing the Town to submit an
application to the Maricopa County Housing and Community Development Divisions for
funding under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) program to be utilized for a wastewater system
rehabilitation project consisting of the repair and replacement of nine sewer line segments
totaling 3,297 linear feet of pipe and nine manhole structures with engineering

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

Mary Bravo 
Councilmember 

Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

Gloria Cota 
Councilmember 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

Agendas/Minutes:  
www.guadalupeaz.org 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 

design/construction document preparation, construction bid process oversight, construction 
management, quality control and inspection and authorizing the Mayor and Town Manager / 
Clerk to execute any documents in furtherance of this application. The requested grant funding 
amount totals $544,438 for fiscal year 2021-2022.  The application submittal deadline is December 
3, 2020.   Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.  (related to G1) 

3. PUBLIC SAFETY, SERVICE, OPERATIONS AND FACILITY NEEDS, TOWN HALL FRONT
SERVICE DESK AND COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM (CAP) COVID-19 SAFETY CONTRUCTION
CONTRACT:  Council will consider and may take action to award a contract (C2020-48) to TSG
Constructor, LLC in the amount of $417,000for COVID-19 safety and public health improvements,
construction, and renovation to the Guadalupe Town Hall and Community Action Program (CAP)
offices.  The project will include sanitary upgrades to Town Hall lobby restrooms, front desk reception
area, CAP office interior offices, and foodbank storage areas.   This contract is funded through the
COVID-19 Relief Funds of $2 million received from the Pascua Yaqui Tribe, as approved by Town
Council at their August 13, 2020 meeting.   Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.
(material will be provided in a revision packet)

H. TOWN MANAGERS’ COMMENTS

I. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

J. ADJOURNMENT

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


1 

November 23, 2020 

To: The Honorable Mayor and Town Council 

From:  Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk 

RE: November 24, 2020, Town Council Regular Meeting Information Report 

The purpose of this report is to provide brief information regarding each of the meeting’s agenda items. 

Agenda Items: 

G1. & G2.  PUBLIC HEARING & COMMUNITY BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (RESOLUTION NO. R2020.34) – 
PAGES 5-6:   A public hearing is required for specific Housing and Urban Development Community Block Grant 
Projects.  Adoption of this resolution would authorize the submittal of a fiscal year 2021-22 Community Block Grant 
Program application to Maricopa County for a wastewater system rehabilitation project consisting of the repair and 
replacement of nine sewer line segments totaling 3,297 linear feet of pipe and nine manhole structures with engineering 
design/construction document preparation, construction bid process oversight, construction management, quality 
control and inspection.  The requested grant funding amount totals $544,438.  The application submittal deadline is 
December 3, 2020.      

Project Expenditure CDBG Fund Request 

Pipe Rehabilitation $344,738 

Manhole structure Rehabilitation $120,600 

Engineer Design $46,600 

Construction Administration $32,500 

Project Total $544,438 

Locations of priority two pipe segment rehabilitation needs, as illustrated in the application, are as follows: 

 Avenida del Yaqui, north of Calle Sonora

 Calle Tomi, south of Calle Sonora

 Calle Magdalena, east of Calle Tomi

 Calle Iglesia, between Avenida del Yaqui and Calle Tomi

 Calle Iglesia, east of Calle Vauo Nawi

 Calle Tomi, north of Calle Senu

 Calle Vaou Nawi, 9400 South block

 Calle Vaou Nawi, 9600 South block

 Calle Maravilla and Calle Barbarita and Calle Bella Vista intersections

The Town sewer lines are approximately 40 years old, with a number of segments in need of repair.  This proposal is 

the second of a five year program requesting CDBG Grant funds for wastewater system repair and rehabilitation, as 

presented in the October 2019 Wastewater Collection System Assessment.  Should the CDBG grant be awarded, 

construction would occur in 2022.  (related to agenda item G1)  

Page 3



2 

G3.    PUBLIC SAFETY, SERVICE, OPERATIONS AND FACILITY NEEDS, TOWN HALL FRONT SERVICE DESK 
AND COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM (CAP) COVID-19 SAFETY CONTRUCTION CONTRACT:  Staff and Town 
Dibble Engineering, Town Engineer, are recommending the award of a contract (C2020-48) to TSG Constructors, LLC 
in the amount of $417,000 for COVID-19 safety and public health improvements, construction, and renovation to 
Guadalupe Town Hall and Community Action Program (CAP) offices.  The project includes sanitary upgrades to the 
Town Hall lobby restrooms, front desk reception area, CAP office interior offices, and foodbank storage areas.   This 
contract is funded through the COVID-19 Relief Funds of $2 million received from the Pascua Yaqui Tribe, as approved 
by Town Council at their August 13, 2020 meeting. 

At the September 24, 2020, Town Council meeting, Town Council approved a design contract with Dibble Engineering 

to design the improvements and prepare construction documents.   

Construction bids were solicited with three bid proposals submitted as follows: 

Firm Amount 

Blackhawk Construction LLC $430,841 

Straight Arrow Contracting $465,000 

TSG Constructors, LLC $417,000 

Should the contract be awarded, construction is expected to begin on December 2, 2020, with an anticipated 
completion date of March 1, 2021.  Town Hall front desk services will continue throughout the construction, with its 
office area relocated to the Department of Economic Security front office.  CAP services will also continue with weekly 
Tuesday food distribution being relocated to the Mercado parking lot, immediately south of the stage.  CAP rental and 
utility assistance will continue by appointment with CAP staff.  CAP staff will be temporality relocated to the former 
court offices.   

This contract expenditure is funded through the COVID-19 Relief Funds of $2 million received from the Pascua Yaqui 
Tribe, as approved by Town Council at their August 13, 2020 meeting.  

Page 4



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R2020.34 
 

A resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Guadalupe, Maricopa County, Arizona, 
authorizing the Town to submit an application to the Maricopa County Housing and 
Community Development Divisions for funding under the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development’s (HUD) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program to be 
utilized for a wastewater system rehabilitation project consisting of the repair and 
replacement of nine sewer line segments totaling 3,297 linear feet of pipe and nine manhole 
structures with engineering design/construction document preparation, construction bid 
process oversight, construction management, quality control and inspection.  The 
requested grant funding amount totals $544,438 for fiscal year 2021-2022; and, authorizing 
the Mayor and Town Manager / Clerk to execute any documents in furtherance of this 
agreement. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Guadalupe, Maricopa County, Arizona, the Town is 
hereby authorized to submit applications for fiscal year 2021-2022 Maricopa County CDBG funds for: 

 
Wastewater system rehabilitation Project totaling $544,438:  
• 3,297 Linear Feet of Sewer Line/Pipe Repair and/or Replacement; and, 
• 9 manhole structure repairs and/or reconstruction; and, 
• Engineering design/construction document preparation, construction bid process oversight, 

construction management, quality control and inspection. 
 
Exhibit A illustrates the locations of the sewer line replacement segments. 

 

Name of person(s) authorized to sign application(s), execute a Subrecipient agreement, and other required 
documents: 
 

NAME:  Jeff Kulaga                       
 

TITLE:  Town  Manager/Clerk          

NAME: Valerie Molina              
 

TITLE: Mayor                              

 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, this 24th 
day of November, 2020. 
 

______________________________ 
Valerie Molina, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
________________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
________________________________ 
David E. Ledyard, Town Attorney 

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



4
4

44

4 4

4 4

44

4 4

44

4
4

4 4 4

4 4

4 4

4

444

4
4
4

4
4

4
4

4

4
4

444 44 44 44

4

4

4
444

4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4

4
4

4
4

4

4 4

4
4

4
4

4 4

4
4

4
4

4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4

4 444 44 4444 4

4
4

4

44

4 4 4 4 4

4
4

4
4

4
4
4

4
4

4
4

4 4 4

4 4

4 4

44

4
4

4

4 4

4 4

4
4
4

4

4 4

4 4

4

4 4

4 4 4

4

4 44
4

4
4
4

4 4 4 44

4
4

4 4

4
4

4 4

4

4 4 4 4

4
4
4

4
4

4 4

4
4

4

4
4

4

4
4

4
4

4 4 4
4

4

4
4

4
4

4 4

4 4

4 4 4 4

44

44

4 44 4

4 4

4 4

4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4 4

4 4

444

4
4
4

4

4
4

4
4

4

4 4
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4 4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4 4

4
4

4 4 4

4
4

4

4

4

4 4

4

4
4

4

4 4 4 4

4 44 4

4 4 4 4 4 4

4 4

4 4

4 4 4

4 4

4 4

4 4 4 4 4 4

4
4

4
4
4

4
4

4

4

4

4 4
4

4
44 4

4
4

4 4 44 4

4
4

44

4

4

4

4
4

4
4

4

4
4

4

4 4

4 4

4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4

4 4

4

44

4 4

4
4

4

4 4

44

4 4 4

4
4

4
4

4

4
4

4

4

4

4 4

4 4

4

!.
!.

!.

!.

!.

!.

!.

!.

!.

!. !. !.!.

!.

!.

!.

!. !. !.!.

!.

!.

LEGEND
Urgent Repair
Year One
Year Two
Year Three
Year Four
Year Five

I
Interstate 10

Gu
ad

alu
pe

 R
d

Ba
sel

ine
 R

d

Avenida Del Yaqui

Dibble Engineering
October 2019 20

Town of Guadalupe 
Wastewater Collection System Assessment

5-year Rehabilitation Phasing

Calle Bella Vista

Calle Maravilla

Calle Sahuaro

Calle Azteca

Ca
lle

 Bi
eh

n

Ca
lle

 M
ex

ico

Ca
lle

 Ig
les

ia

Ca
lle

 Sa
n A

ng
elo

Ca
lle

 M
ag

de
lan

a

Ca
lle

 Sa
no

ra

Ca
lle

 G
lor

ia

Ca
lle

 Pi
tay

a

Ca
lle

 C
err

ito
s

Calle Vauo Nawi

Calle Tomi

Calle Batoa

EXHIBIT A --  Priority - Year One - Wastewater System Rehabilatiton Projects              Nov. 14, 2019 
Page 54



  November 2020 

  

 

 
 

V. CONTRACT AGREEMENT 
 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT made as of the 25th day of November in the year of Two Thousand Twenty, 
between: 
 
the OWNER: Town of Guadalupe 

  9241 South Avenida Del Yaqui 
Guadalupe, Arizona 85283 

 
the CONTRACTOR:    TSG Constructors, LLC 
      PO Box 71640 
      Phoenix, Arizona 85050 
 
 
the PROJECT (name and number): Town of Guadalupe 

Guadalupe Town Hall Improvements 
      Project Number 1016014.11 
       
 
 
 
the CONSULTANT:    Dibble Engineering 
      7878 North 16th Street, Suite 300 
      Phoenix, Arizona 85020 
 
 
 
 
the OWNER and the CONTRACTOR agree as set forth below. 
 

 
A.  THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 
The Contract Documents consist of this AGREEMENT, the project Drawings, the Specifications, all 
Addenda issued prior to and all Modifications issued after execution of the AGREEMENT.  These form the 
Contract, and all are as fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this AGREEMENT or repeated herein 
and except for modifications after execution of this AGREEMENT are as follows: 
 
Invitation to Bid Project Drawings  
Instructions to Bidders Technical Specifications  
General Contract Conditions Statutory Performance Bond 
Contract Agreements List of Subcontractors  
Statutory Payment Bond Contract Change Order  
Affidavit of Settlement of Claims  Affidavit of No Collusion 
Bidding Schedule  Federal Provisions for Town of Guadalupe 

Page 55



  November 2020 

  

 

B.  THE WORK 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall perform all the Work specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The 
Scope of Work Involves the Following: 

• Removal and disposal of existing male and female lavatories and installation of new lavatories. 

• Removal and disposal of existing reception desk. 

• Installation of new millwork reception desk. 

• Removal and relocation of double doors at lobby north area. 

• Limited demolition of non-rated, non-load bearing interior walls 

• New build-outs-warehouse/food pantry with new finishes, mechanical and electrical work. 
 
C. TIME OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
 
1. The Work to be performed under this contract shall be commenced in accordance with "3" below. 
 
2. Subject to authorized adjustments, Substantial Completion shall be achieved not later than the date 

indicated on the "Notice to Proceed". 
 
3. It is hereby understood and mutually agreed, by and between the CONTRACTOR and the OWNER, 

that the date of beginning, rate of process, and the time for completion of the Work to be done 
hereunder, are ESSENTIAL CONDITIONS of this Contract, and it is further mutually understood and 
agreed that the Work embraced in this Contract shall be commenced on the date of "NOTICE TO 
PROCEED".  The CONTRACTOR agrees that said Work shall be prosecuted regularly, diligently, and 
uninterruptedly at such rate of progress as will insure full completion thereof within the CONTRACT 
TIME stated in the Invitation to Bid or as adjusted by addendum.  He also shall consider that the 
OWNER needs the complete use of these facilities as quickly as possible. 

 
4. In the event that the CONTRACTOR shall neglect, fail or refuse to complete the Work within the time 

specified, then the CONTRACTOR does hereby agree, as part consideration for the awarding of this 
Contract, to pay to the OWNER Four Hundred ($400.00) dollars and no cents per day, not as a penalty, 
but as liquidated damages for such breach of contract as hereinafter set forth for each and every 
calendar day that the CONTRACTOR shall be in default after the time stipulated in the Contract for 
completing the Work.  The said amount is fixed and agreed upon by and between the CONTRACTOR 
and the OWNER because of the impracticability and extreme difficulty in fixing and ascertaining the 
actual damages the OWNER would in such event sustain. 

 
D. CONTRACT SUM 
 
The OWNER shall pay the CONTRACTOR based on additions and deductions by Change Order as 
provided in the Contract Documents, the contract sum of $417,000.00 (Base Bid) 
 
The Contract sum is determined by the CONTRACTOR's accepted sealed bid amount. 
 
E. PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
 
Based upon applications for Payment submitted to the Consultant by the CONTRACTOR and Certificates 
for Payment issued by the Consultant, the OWNER shall make progress payments on the Contract Sum to 
the CONTRACTOR less retention from each payment in accordance with the latest revision of the Arizona 
State Statutory requirements.  These Progress Payments will be for labor, materials and equipment 
incorporated in the Work and/or material and equipment suitably stored for use on the project as approved 
by the Consultant. 

Page 56



  November 2020 

  

 

 
F. FINAL PAYMENT 
 
Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be paid by the OWNER to 
the CONTRACTOR when the Work has been completed, the Contract fully performed, a final Certificate for 
Payment has been issued, and the CONTRACTOR's Affidavit regarding Settlement of Claims is 
completed. 
  
G. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
1.  CONTRACTOR has familiarized himself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, 

Work, locality, and with all local conditions and federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and 
regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress or performance of the Work. 

 
2.  CONTRACTOR has studied carefully all reports of investigations and tests of subsurface and latent 

physical conditions at the site or otherwise affecting cost, progress or performance of the Work 
which were relied upon by the Consultant in the preparation of the Drawings and Specifications and 
which have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions. 

 
3.  CONTRACTOR has made or caused to be made, examinations, investigations and tests and 

studies of such reports and related data in addition to those referred to in Article I as he deems 
necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents; and no additional 
examinations, investigations, tests, reports or similar data are or will be required by CONTRACTOR 
for such purposes. 

 
4.  CONTRACTOR has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 

tests, reports and data with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
5.  CONTRACTOR has given Consultant written notice of all Conflicts, errors, or discrepancies that he 

has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by the Consultant is 
acceptable to CONTRACTOR. 

 
6.  Terms used in the AGREEMENT which are defined in the General Conditions shall have the 

meanings indicated in the General Conditions. 
 
7.  No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interest in the Contract Documents will be 

binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the other party to this Contract 
(except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically 
stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment.  No assignment will release or 
discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

 
 
8.  OWNER and CONTRACTOR each binds himself, his partners, successors, assignees and legal 

representatives to the other party hereto, in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations 
contained in the Contract Documents. 

 
9.  Termination, Postponement or Abandonment.  The right is reserved by the OWNER to terminate, 

indefinitely postpone Work, or abandon the project.  This Contract may be terminated by giving 
written notice to the CONTRACTOR at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the effective date of 
termination.  In the event of such termination, the OWNER shall be liable to the CONTRACTOR 
only to the extent as provided by this Contract for materials supplied and Work completed prior to 

Page 57



  November 2020 

  

 

the effective date of termination.  The OWNER will comply with the latest revisions of the Arizona 
State Statutory requirements for negotiation of the contract termination. 

 
10.  Retention of Records.  The CONTRACTOR agrees that the Department of Housing and Urban 

Development, the Comptroller General of the United States, Town of Guadalupe, or any of their 
duly authorized representatives, may have access to any accounting records, books, documents, 
papers or records of the CONTRACTOR which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purpose 
of audit, examination, excerpts, and transcripts for a period of three (3) years from the date of 
acceptance of certificate of completion.  (In the event litigation, a claim or audit is begun before the 
expiration of the three-year period, said records shall be retained until all such actions or audit 
findings involving the records have been resolved.) 

 
11.  Equal Employment Opportunity.  In the performance of this Contract, the CONTRACTOR agrees 

not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, 
color, sex, national origin, age, or handicap.  The CONTRACTOR further agrees to insert this 
provision in all subcontracts hereunder. 

 
12. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify, 

and hold harmless the TOWN OF GUADALUPE, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, 
officials, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but 
not limited to attorney fees, court costs, expert witness fees, and the cost of appellate proceedings, 
relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have resulted from the acts, errors, omissions or mistakes 
relating to the performance of this Contract.  CONTRACTOR’S duty to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the TOWN OF GUADALUPE, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, and 
employees shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense that is attributable to 
bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or destruction of property, including 
loss of use resulting there from, caused by any acts, errors, omissions or mistakes in the 
performance of this Contract including any person for whose acts, errors, omissions or mistakes, 
the CONTRACTOR may be legally liable. 

 
The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein will in no way be 
construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this paragraph. 

 
Abrogation of Arizona Revised Statutes Section 34-226:  In the event that A.R.S. § 34-226 shall 
be repealed or held unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, then to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, the CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
the TOWN OF GUADALUPE, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses (including but not limited to 
attorney fees, court costs, and the cost of appellate proceedings), relating to, arising out of, or 
resulting from CONTRACTOR’S work or services.  CONTRACTOR’S duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold  harmless, the TOWN OF GUADALUPE, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, 
officials and employees shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense that is 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, injury to, impairment or destruction of property 
including loss of use resulting there from, caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the 
CONTRACTOR, anyone CONTRACTOR directly or indirectly employs or anyone for whose acts 
CONTRACTOR may be liable, regardless of whether it is caused in part by a party indemnified 
hereunder, including the TOWN OF GUADALUPE. 

 
The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth below will  
in no way be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this paragraph. The scope of this 
indemnification does not extend to the sole negligence of the TOWN OF GUADALUPE. 
  

Page 58



  November 2020 

  

 

13. CONTRACTOR, at CONTRACTOR’S own expense, shall purchase and maintain the herein 
stipulated minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a current A.M. Best, Inc. 
minimum rating of A-.  All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect until 
all work or service required to be performed under the terms of the Contract is satisfactorily 
completed and formally accepted. Failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of the TOWN OF 
GUADALUPE, constitute a material breach of this Contract. 
 
The CONTRACTOR’S insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the TOWN OF 
GUADALUPE, and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
shall not contribute to it. 
 
Any failure to comply with the claim reporting provisions of the insurance policies or any breach of 
an insurance policy warranty shall not affect coverage afforded under the insurance policies to 
protect the TOWN OF GUADALUPE. 
 
The insurance policies may provide coverage which contains deductibles or self-insured retentions. 
Such deductible and/or self-insured retentions shall not be applicable with respect to the coverage 
provided to the TOWN OF GUADALUPE under such policies. The CONTRACTOR shall be solely 
responsible for the deductible and/or self-insured retention and the TOWN OF GUADALUPE, at its 
option, may require the CONTRACTOR to secure payment of such deductibles or self-insured 
retentions by a surety bond or an irrevocable and unconditional letter of credit. 
 
The TOWN OF GUADALUPE reserves the right to request and to receive, within 10 working days, 
certified copies of any or all of the herein required insurance policies and/or endorsements. The 
TOWN OF GUADALUPE shall not be obligated, however, to review such policies and/or 
endorsements or to advise CONTRACTOR of any deficiencies in such policies and endorsements, 
and such receipt shall not relieve CONTRACTOR from, or be deemed a waiver of the TOWN OF 
GUADALUPE’S right to insist on strict fulfillment of CONTRACTOR’S obligations under this 
Contract. 
 
The insurance policies required by this Contract, except Workers’ Compensation, shall name the 
TOWN OF GUADALUPE, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, and employees 
as Additional Insureds. 
 
The policies required hereunder, except Workers’ Compensation, shall contain a waiver of transfer 
of rights of recovery (subrogation) against the TOWN OF GUADALUPE, its agents, 
representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees for any claims arising out of 
CONTRACTOR’S work or service. 
 
a. Commercial General Liability. CONTRACTOR shall maintain Commercial General Liability 

insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence with a $2,000,000 
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate and a $2,000,000 General Aggregate Limit. The 
policy shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage, personal injury, 
products and completed operations and blanket contractual coverage including, but not limited 
to, the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Contract which coverage 
will be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc. Policy Form CG 00 01 10 93 or any 
replacements thereof.  The coverage shall include X, C, U. 

 
 The policy shall contain a severability of interest provision and shall not contain a sunset 

provision or commutation clause, or any provision which would serve to limit third party action 
over claims. 

 

Page 59



  November 2020 

  

 

 The Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement shall be at least as broad as 
the Insurance Service Office, Inc.’s Additional Insured, Form CG 20 10 11 85, and shall include 
coverage for CONTRACTOR’S operations and products and completed operations. 

 
 If the CONTRACTOR subcontracts any part of the work, services or operations awarded to the 

CONTRACTOR, he shall purchase and maintain, at all times during prosecution of the work, 
services or operations under this Contract, an Owner’s and CONTRACTOR’S Protective 
Liability insurance policy for bodily injury and property damage, including death, which may 
arise in the prosecution of the CONTRACTOR’S work, service or operations under this 
Contract. Coverage shall be on an occurrence basis with a limit not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence, and the policy shall be issued by the same insurance company that issues the 
CONTRACTOR’S Commercial General Liability insurance. 

 
b. Automobile Liability.  CONTRACTOR shall maintain Automobile Liability insurance with an 

individual single limit for bodily injury and property damage of no less than $1,000,000, each 
occurrence, with respect to CONTRACTOR’S vehicles (whether owned, hired, non-owned), 
assigned to or used in the performance of this Contract. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation. The CONTRACTOR shall carry Workers’ Compensation insurance to 

cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having jurisdiction of CONTRACTOR’S 
employees engaged in the performance of the work or services, as well as Employer’s Liability 
insurance of not less than $1,000,000 for each accident, $1,000,000 disease for each 
employee, and $1,000,000 disease policy limit. In case any work is subcontracted, the 
CONTRACTOR will require the Subcontractor to provide Workers’ Compensation and 
Employer’s Liability insurance to at least the same extent as required of the CONTRACTOR. 

 
d. Builders’ Risk (Property) Insurance.  The CONTRACTOR shall purchase and maintain, on a 

replacement cost basis, Builders’ Risk insurance in the amount of the initial Contract amount as 
well as subsequent modifications thereto for the entire work at the site.  Such Builders’ Risk 
insurance shall be maintained until final payment has been made or until no person or entity 
other than the TOWN OF GUADALUPE has an insurable interest in the property required to be 
covered, whichever is earlier. This insurance shall include interests of the TOWN OF 
GUADALUPE, the CONTRACTOR, and all subcontractors and sub-subcontractors in the work 
during the life of the Contract and course of construction and shall continue until the work is 
completed and accepted by the TOWN OF GUADALUPE.  For new construction projects, the 
CONTRACTOR agrees to assume full responsibility for loss or damage to the work being 
performed and to the structures under construction.  For renovation construction projects, the 
CONTRACTOR agrees to assume responsibility for loss or damage to the work being 
performed at least up to the full Contract amount, unless otherwise required by the Contract 
documents or amendments thereto. 

 
 

 Builders’ Risk insurance shall be on an all-risk policy form and shall also cover false work and 
temporary buildings and shall insure against risk of direct physical loss or damage from 
external causes including debris removal, demolition occasioned by enforcement of any 
applicable legal requirements, and shall cover reasonable compensation for architect’s service 
and expenses required as a result of such insured loss and other “soft costs” as required by the 
Contract. 

 
 Builders’ Risk insurance must provide coverage from the time any covered property comes 

under CONTRACTOR’S control and/or responsibility, and continue without interruption during 
construction, renovation, or installation, including any time during which the covered property is 

Page 60



  November 2020 

  

 

being transported to the construction installation site, and while on the construction or 
installation site awaiting installation.  The policy will provide coverage while the covered 
premises or any part thereof are occupied.  Builders’ Risk insurance shall be primary and not 
contributory. 

 
 If the Contract requires testing of equipment or other similar operations, at the option of the 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE, the CONTRACTOR will be responsible for providing property 
insurance for these exposures under a Boiler Machinery insurance policy. 

 
 Required coverages may be modified by an amendment to the Contract documents. 
 
e. Certificates Of Insurance.  Prior to commencing work or services under this Contract, 

CONTRACTOR shall furnish the TOWN OF GUADALUPE with Certificates of Insurance, or 
formal endorsements as required by the Contract, issued by CONTRACTOR’S insurer(s), as 
evidence that policies providing the required coverages, conditions and limits required by this 
Contract are in full force and effect. Such certificates shall identify this contract number and 
title. 

 
 In the event any insurance policy(ies) required by this contract is(are) written on a “claims 

made” basis, coverage shall extend for two years past completion and acceptance of the 
CONTRACTOR’S work or services and as evidenced by annual Certificates of Insurance. 

 
 If a policy does expire during the life of the Contract, a renewal certificate must be sent to the 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date. 
 
f. Cancellation And Expiration Notice.  Insurance required herein shall not expire, be canceled, or 

materially changed without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the TOWN OF GUADALUPE. 
 
Building Permit Fees ($6,108) will be waived as an in-kind contribution by the Town of Guadalupe. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this CONTRACT in duplicate as of the day and 
year first herein written. 
 
 
CONTRACTOR  TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
  
BY: ____________________________ BY: _______________________________ 

TITLE: _________________________ TITLE: ____________________________ 

_______________________________ __________________________________ 
DATE DATE 

Page 61



Page 62


	FINAL 11 24 2020 RCM Agenda.pdf
	Council Meeting 11 24 20  Information Memo.pdf
	G1. & G2. a.  Resolution No. R2019.34 - Sewer Pipe Replacement Project.pdf
	G1. & G2. b. CDBG 2020-2021 Grant Application sewer line rehab 11_18_202....pdf
	G1  & G2. c. Exhibit A  - CDBG Priority Sewer line replacement segments.pdf
	G3. a. Town Hall Contract.pdf
	G3. b. Bid Opening Results - Town Hall.pdf



